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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Mount Horeb Baptist Church {s located on a 1/2 acre clearing in a heavily
wooded rural area in western Montgomery County, Missouri. It is bordered on two
sides by gravel roads that intersect to one side of the building. It sits in
association with two small frame outhouses and the Church cemetery. .

The church is a rectangu]ar one~story frame building with gable roof and no
basement. Exterior dimensions are 28' 3" x 46' 5". The single room has a
ceiling height of 14' 6", except along the SIdewa11s where the ceiling follows
the slope of the roof.

The foundation consists of a series of single rough-hewn stones on which the
wood floor structure is set. Flooring is of 9" wide sawn planks. Exterior
facing is 3/8" bevel wood siding with pilaster corner boards, painted white, = .
The roof is-d simple A-frame construction with asphalt shingl1ng placed over;:,; -
wood shingles,~ ~ '~ o

There are six double-hung windows, 2' 9" wide, glazed with clear glass, with
triangular heads. They are set three on a side, east and west facing. The

front entrance consists of a pair of two-paneled doors surmounted by a glazed R
transom. The rear door is a single leaf, with a glazed transom of clear glass.

The interior walls and ceiling are plaster covered with wallpaper and paint.
There is a matched and beaded wood wainscot 3' 1" high on all four sides.
Heating is by means 6f a 30" diameter stove with the 1nscr1ption' “National
Air Heater #18-30, Excelsior Stove Co., Quincy, I1linois."™ The stovepipe runs
to a concrete block chimney corbe]led from the side wall. . , .

The church contains thirty benches, said to be of hand-hewn sycamore, twenty-
eight of which are 10' 2" long and two which are 6' 2" long. The seats are
made from a single board 1-1/2" x 14" and backs from a single board 1 1/16"
x 14 1/2". The room has a raised center platform at the north end.

With the exceptions of the alterations listed as follows, the building stands
as built: concrete block chiithey, asphalt shingtes on roof (1951), feplaceiment
of -original .exterior shutters with wooden window coverings padlocked for
security, replacement of rear door, change of wallpaper.

The building has been in continuous use as a church since construction in 1897,
there are no plans to alter it's situation, however church services are held
only once a month. The building suffers from a dwindling congregation and
constant threat of vandalism.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Mount Horeb Baptist Church is significant as a good example of a late
nineteenth century rural Missouri one-room frame meeting house. Due to the
isolated location , the building and its environment have changed 1ittle and
therefore retain much of the original feeling associated with rural life.

The historical experience of the church is representative of rural Baptist. .'°
congregations in Mid-Missouri. The church retains associations with the early . ..
settlement patterns of Mid-Missouri, the original congregations being made up '
of families from Kentucky and Tennessee. These ‘rural churches made a considerable
contribution to the development of the Mid-Missouri area and provided a base

for the beliefs and 1ife style of the original settlers and their decendents.
These associations helped to hold individuals together to provide a sense of
community when one did not exist, and provide activities of both a religious

and social nature.

The association with the rural church provided these early Missourians with
beliefs that would effect not only their religious character, but also their oy
conduct and opinions in other elements of society including education, politics,
and economics, contributing much to the character of the present Missourian.

The counties surrounding Mount Horeb were settled by back-country farmers from
Kentucky and Tennessee, followers of the Boone family that entered Mid-Missouri
in the early 1800's.” The Mount Horeb church followed a typical pattern of
development for rural churches, particularly Baptist churches, in Missourt.

~ First attended by circuit riding ministers, the early settlers of Mid-Missouri
met informally and later as an organized church at members' homes. For the
Mount Horeb congregation, as with many others, the first building erected
specifically for use as a meeting -house was made of logs. .Frame structures
later replaced the log ones as the membership grew. These church organizations
provided the early settlers and their farming decendents, essentially in
isolation, with the opportunity to escape that isolation through the church
meeting, which attended to both the religious and social needs of these people.

In 1830, the Salem Baptist Association of Callaway, Boone, Warren and Montgomery
Counties held its annual meeting in Callaway County at the home of Samual Boone,
a nephew of Daniel Boone. The Association encouraged ‘the settlers surroundfng
Boone to organize their own congregation. From this meeting, Boone and his
neighbors eventually organized the Mount Horeb Baptist Church on August 3, 1833.
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Manuscript: McQuie Rev. R. E., and Tate, Joseph ¥., "History of Mount Horeb Church,"
1933, (Done for the 100th anniversary of the church).
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Meetings were held at members' homes or out of doors until 1840 when their first
meeting house was built in Callaway County. It was "a double log building wit?
a pen on either side, in one of which was a door and in the other the pulpit."

Oriainally a member of the Salem Baptist Association, the church withdrew in
1838 over the.issue of missionary work and joined with Little Bonmne Femme,
Columbia, Nashville, Providence, Freedom and Salem churches to form the little
Bonne Femme Association on November 16, 1839.

Baptists, in general, did not establish a centEalized church structure because &6
their basic belief in cangregational autonomy.< However, they did form voluntary
associations of local churches for denominational cooperation. Mount Horeb
followed this pattern, electing their ministers from the congregations, and
majntaining a close-knit, family oriented church. Decendents of some of the
original families of Snethen's, Coles, and Tates continue to care for the
building and meet on occasion for religious services providing a sense of °
continuity throughout the congregation's 147 years.

The church flourished and in 1858 purchased four acres of land in'Montgomery
County, site of the present building. In 1860, the congregation erected their
first frame church on that four acres.

As one of the founding churches of the Little Boone Femme Association, Mount
Horeb served as the sponsor of several annual meetings of the association. The
church provided leadership until 1883, when the association met at Mount Horeb
for the last time. The location, far from towns or improved roads or other
forms of transportation, was not suitable to the association for its future
meetings. :

The families of the area continued to hold meetings in the church, as well as
Baptisms in the nearby creek and occasional revivals. In 1897, they removed
the 1860 structure and built the present building at a cos§ of $444.13 and
dedicated it on the fourth Sunday in October of that year.

The church prospered in the early twentieth century, but the congregation declined
in numbers after the 1930's. The trend of movement from the rural areas to the
towns and cities decided the fate of Mount Horeb as well as many other rural
churches. Regular services continued into the 1960's. The building is no

longer associated with a regular Baptist membership, but serviggs are hbld on
occasion by decendents who maintain the building and property.
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Mount Horeb sits in isolation, surrounded by wooded hills and plowed fields much
as it did when built. It was this isolation that permitted the building to remain.
It serves as a point of demarcation-between the nineteenth and twentieth century.
It represents the highest hopes of those original settlers. Although used
primarily in the twentieth century, the building, because of its isolation, has
remained a link to the beliefs, aspirations and 1ife style of the 1800's where it
had its foundation. :

1. Rev. R. E. McQuie and Joseph W. Tate, "History of Mount Horeb Church," 1933.

2 R, S. Duncan, A History of the Baptists in Missouri, Scammell and Co. St. Louis,
Missouri, 1882. '

3 "Minutes of the Mt. Horeb Chuuch," November, 1897,

4, Willdrd Rand, “Little Church in the Wildwood," St. Louis Post Dispatch,
July 21, 1978.
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‘A History of the Baptists in Missouri, R.S. Duncan, Scammell and Company, St. Louis,
Missouri, 1882. ’

Minutes of the Mt. Horeb Church, November, 1897.

“Little 08@ Church in the Wildwood," Willard Rand, St. Louis® Post Dispatch
article, July 21, 1978.

Missouri Baptist Bjoqraphy, J. C. Maple and R. P. Rider, Western Baptist Publishing
~Company, Kansas City, 1918. _
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thence south 5.13 chains to stone, thence north 78 1/2° east 7.94 chains to stone,
thence north 5.13 chains to stone, thence south 78 1/2° west 7.94 chains to point
of beginning and containing four acres, more or less.
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2. Willard C. Rand
7515 Parkdale
St. Louis, Missouri 314-862-0047

3. James M. Denny, Section Chief, Nominations-Survey
and State Contact Person

Historic Preservation Program 314/751-4096
P.0. Box 176

Jefferson City - Missouri 65102
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ITE PLAN MAP
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JOUNT HOREB BAPTIST CHURCH 3of 5
“ontgomery County, lissouri
Photographer: James i1, Denny
June 15, 1979
Neg. Loc.: .iissouri Department of Natural
Resources, P.0. Box 176,
Jefferson City, Missouri 65102

Detail of window; view looking west.
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JWQUNT HOREB BAPTIST CHURCH 4 of 5
Jlontgomery County, .lissouri
Photographer: James M. Denny
June 15, 1979
deg. Loc.: lissouri Department of ilatural
rResources, P.0. Box 176,
Jefferson City, dissouri 65102

Detail of entry door; view Tooking ilorth.






"Y340Uu DULYOO| MILA SMSLA JOLUDIUT

20169  L4NOSSLL ALY UOSUBIaL
“g/1 X0g ‘0'd ©S204n0say

[eJnie}; J0 UBWIJRAESC LANOSSL,' : - 207 *Ham
661 °GL sunp

Auusg - sawep :asydeuaboioud

LANOSSL T *Aunoq A4swobiugl

G 409 HOYNHD LSILd¥YC 93¥CH LNROL

e







FEXTRA
HOTOS






























